
Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
Directorate

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle, CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 227354 

Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

11 December 2019

To:  The Chair and Members of the Holehird 
Trust Joint Committee

Agenda
HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Thursday 19 December 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Committee Room 2, County Hall, Kendal

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director- Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Daniel Hamilton
Direct Line: 07920700299
Email: daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Appointed by Eden Local Committee

Mr A Connell
Mr P Dew
Mr D Whipp

Appointment by South Lakeland Local Committee

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark
Ms B Gray

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

PART 1 - ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC  

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where



(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

4  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 September 2019 (copy 
enclosed).
 
(Pages 7 - 10)

5  CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

To consider a report from the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community 
Services (copy enclosed).
 
(Pages 11 - 22)

6  GRANT APPLICATIONS

To consider grant applications received by Cumbria Community Foundation (copy 
enclosed).
 
(Pages 23 - 54)

7  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING



The next meeting will be held on 5 March 2020.
  

PART 2 - ITEMS  CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

8  PROPERTY MATTERS

To consider a report from the Land Agent (copy enclosed).
  
(Pages 55 - 56)



This page is intentionally left blank



 HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee held on Thursday, 12 
September 2019 at 10.00 am at Committee Room 1 , County Offices, Kendal

PRESENT:

 

Mrs BC Gray
Mr W Clark

Mr P Dew

Officers in Attendance:-

Mr D Hamilton - Democratic Services Officer
Mr D Rawle - Senior Estates Surveyor
Mr D Routledge
Ms E Clements

- Finance Officer - Children's Services Finance
- Cumbria Community Foundation

Ms J Dixon                      -     Savills
Mr M Towers - Savills

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies have been received from Mr A Connell and Mr J Bland. 

10 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest made on this occasion. 

11 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The meeting resolved to exclude the press and public during consideration of Item 8 
on the Agenda (Property Matters).

12 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOVED that, the minutes of the last meeting of the Holehird Trust 
Joint Committee held on 13 June 2019 be agreed as an 

7

Agenda Item 4



accurate and complete record with the following 
amendment:-

 Minute 6 – Grant applications: The approved grant should have read 
£1665.00 in line with the recommendation.

13 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

Members considered a report from the Director Finance (Section 151 Officer) which 
updated members on the income and expenditure of the Holehird Estate to date, 
and identified the amount available for grants and fees for the 2019-20 financial 
year. 

Discussion took place regarding the accounts to 31 August 2019 in comparison with 
those from the end of the previous financial year. It was acknowledged that the 
accounts were in a healthy condition.

Members were informed that the amount available to distribute in 2019-20 was still 
the originally set £ 40,000 plus fees of £ 4,000.

Prior to the meeting £ 10,665 had been distributed on grants which left a further £ 
29,335 available to be distributed during the 2019-20 financial year. 

It was RESOLVED that, Members note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2019-20 financial year. 

14 GRANT APPLICATIONS

Members considered the recommendations of the Senior Grants & Donor Services 
Officer from Cumbria Community Foundation. 

RESOLVED to approve the following grants:-

21692 South Lakes Action on Climate Change towards transition
The food hub @ 155
Approved £2,000.00
Requested £2,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries
 

21690c Penrith Cricket Club
Coach Education Project
Approved £1,500.00
Requested £3,500.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & Young People
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

8



21663c The Lighthouse Community Mental Health Hub
Drop in Service
Approved £2,500.00
Requested £6,142.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – Older people
Charitable objectives - to provide advance the education of beneficiaries

21627 Bolton Nursery 
Pre-school swimming lessons
Approved £540.40
Requested £540.40
Recommended £540.40 
Priority – Children & Young People
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

21594 Kendal Gymnastics Club
Relocation of Facilities 
Approved £10,420.00
Requested £10,420.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority - Children & Young People
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries.

21570 The Lakes School Community Partnership
Talking Heads
Approved £500.00
Requested £1,974.00
Recommended £00.00 
Priority - Children & Young People
Charitable objectives - to provide the services to beneficiaries.

21721 Kirkby Stephen Mountain Rescue Team
Base Resilience Project
Approved £1,000.00
Requested £10,000.00
Recommended £1,000.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide the services to beneficiaries.

The total amount allocated on this occasion was £10,040.40

15 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 19 December 2019 in Committee Room 2, County 
Hall, Kendal. 

9



16 PROPERTY MATTERS

A representative from Savills land agents attended the meeting and presented a 
report on activity in relation to individual properties owned by the Trust:

 Current management policy
 Lilly Cottage
 No 2 Boot Cottage
 Defining Local Occupants/Affordable Rent
 Thickholme Water Supply
 Glenside De-Laney 
 Far Orrest Farm
 Lakeland Horticultural Society

The representative discussed various aspects of management of the Trust’s 
property, seeking guidance from Members

The meeting ended at 12:00pm

10



Page 1 of 3

HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 19 December 2019

From: Corporate Director – Resources

Paper
No

**
CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20

FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2017-18

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report wishes to identify the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2019-20 financial year. 

1.2 This report wishes for approval to be given to transfer the balance of the 
Trust’s Capital Reserve to the Unrestricted Reserve.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Members are asked to note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2019-20 financial year. 

3.2 Members are asked to approve the transfer of the balance of the Trust’s 
Capital Reserve to the Unrestricted Reserve.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 At the meeting held on 6th March 2017 the amount made available for 
distribution on grants for each year of the current agreement with Cumbria 
Community Foundation was set at £ 40,000 with fees of £ 4,000 (10% of 
grants awarded).

4.2 In 2018-19 the amount distributed on grants was £ 40,000.

4.3 As there were no unallocated amounts for the 2018-19 financial year no 
adjustment to the amounts available for 2019-20 needs to be made.

11

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 3

4.4 The amount available to distribute in 2019-20 is the originally set £ 40,000 with 
fees of £ 4,000.

4.5 To date £ 20,705 has been distributed on grants leaving a further £ 19,295 
available to be distributed during the 2019-20 financial year. 

4.6 During the audit of the 2017-18 accounts it was suggested that, due to capital 
and revenue expenditure not being accounted for separately that there is no 
further need for a Capital Reserve.

4.7 Whenever expenditure is incurred by the Trust on what would be accounted 
for as capital expenditure in commercial entities, an amount equal to the cost 
is transferred from the Capital Reserve to the Unrestricted Reserve. However, 
as capital and revenue expenditure are not accounted for separately by the 
Trust the cost of the capital ultimately comes from the Unrestricted Reserve.

4.8 There would be an overall nil effect on the Trust’s reserves if the above 
transfer was to take place. 

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 This is not really an options report regarding grants and fees but to note the 
amounts available for distribution on grants and fees in the 2019-20 financial 
year.  

5.2 To transfer the balance of the Capital Reserve to the Unrestricted Reserve or 
to leave the balance in the Capital Reserve and maintain the Capital Reserve.                                                                                                                               

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 These are set out in the report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report at this stage.

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 To note the amounts still available for distribution on grants and fees for the 
2019-20 financial year. 

David Routledge
Finance Officer (Children’s Services)
3rd December 2019

APPENDICES

Financial statements for the eight months ended 30.11.2019

12



Page 3 of 3

IMPLICATIONS

Electoral Division(s): All within the former County of Westmorland

Executive Decision Yes*  

Key Decision  No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No*

  N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

 No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

  N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

 No*  Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Holehird Trust Joint Committee, 6th March 2017, Minute No. 31

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Finance Team files containing details of grants, allocations and correspondence with 
Cumbria Community Foundation re the agreement.

Contact: David Routledge    Tel: 01228 226855
        E-Mail :  david.routledge@cumbria.gov.uk

13



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the eight months ended 30.11.19

 Note  30.11.19 31.03.19 30.11.18

Incoming Resources

Rents 114,963 210,257 151,135

Insurance Claims 4,850 1,969 1,969

Interest on Balance 0 187 0

Total incoming Resources 119,813 212,413 153,104

Resources Expended

Capital Works & Refurbishment 104,559 0 0

Building & Ground Maintenance 57,671 98,155 47,632

Other Premises Costs 17,949 21,402 20,700

Other  20,906 35,141 17,450

Grants 20,705 40,000 22,958

Fees 2,071 4,000 2,296

Total Resources Expended 223,861 198,698 111,036

Net Incoming / Outgoing( - ) Resources -104,048 13,715 42,068

Other Recognised Gains and Losses

Unrealised Gains / ( - Losses)

on Investments 2 85,694 88,022 43,399

Net Movement in Funds 6 -18,354 101,737 85,467

Transfer from Capital Reserve 6 104,559 0 0

Balance B/F 6 845,804 744,067 744,067

Balances C/F 6 932,009 845,804 829,534

15



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Balance Sheet as at 30.11.19

Note 30.11.19 31.03.19 30.11.18

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 3 8,304,600 8,200,041 8,200,041

Investments 2 936,613 850,919 806,296

 

9,241,213 9,050,960 9,006,337

Current Assets

Debtors 4 28,251 11,102 5,683

Cash 55,416 176,289 215,036

83,667 187,391 220,719

Liabilities: due within one year 5 324 0 4,975

Net Current Assets 83,343 187,391 215,744

Net Assets 9,324,556 9,238,351 9,222,081

Represented By:

Funds and Reserves 6

Unrestricted Funds 932,009 845,804 829,534

Capital Reserve 140,955 245,514 245,514

Revaluation Reserve 8,251,592 8,147,033 8,147,033

9,324,556 9,238,351 9,222,081

17



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Notes to the accounts for the eight months ended 30.11.19

1 Accounting Policies

These accounts have been prepared using the accruals convention and in accordance 

with applicable accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

on Accounting by Charities.

2 Unrealised Gains on Investments

Valuation at 30.11.19 was 18,347.91 pence per COIF accumulation share.

5,104.74 units were held at this date.

£

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.19 850,919

Valuation of Holding at 30.11.19 936,613

Unrealised Gain / ( - Loss) 85,694

3 Tangible Fixed Assets

£

Valuation at 31.03.19 8,200,041

Additions for year 104,559

Disposals for year 0

Revaluation in year 0

Net Book Value at 30.11.19 8,304,600

4 Debtors 2019/20 2018/19

Rents 28,251 11,102

28,251 11,102

5 Liabilites - due within one year 2019/20 2018/19

General Creditors 324 0

324 0

6 Reserves

Unrestricted Capital Revaluation

Funds Reserve Reserve

Balance at 31.03.19 845,804 245,514 8,147,033

Movement in Year 86,205 -104,559 104,559

Balance at 30.11.19 932,009 140,955 8,251,592

19



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Schedule of Grants paid 2019-20

Organisation Application No Awarded (£) Locality

Long MartonParish Institute 21493B 2,000 Eden

Learning Plus 21500B 2,000 South Lakeland

Blackwell Sailing 21522B 1,665 South Lakeland

Lakes Alive 21515B 1,000 South Lakeland

Natland & Oxenholme Pre School 21556 2,000 South Lakeland

Patterdale King George V Playing Field Assocaiation 21411A 2,000 Eden

South Lakes Action on Climate Change Towards Transition 21692 2,000 South Lakeland

Penrith Cricket Club 21690C 1,500 Eden

The Lighthouse Community Mental Health Hub 21663c 2,500 South Lakeland

Bolton Nursery 21627 540 Eden

Kendal Gymnastics Club 21594 2,000 South Lakeland

The Lakes School Community Partnership 21570 500 South Lakeland

Kirkby Stephen Mountain Rescue Team 21721 1,000 Eden

20,705

21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 19th December 2019

 
All of the applications are eligible geographically and have been selected on the Trusts 
charitable objectives and priorities – Older People, Disabled People, Children and Youth. 
All projects have been assessed on the Community Foundation’s standard procedure.

21921a Eden Sight Support
Supporting people with sight loss
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries
 
21811 Common Space:Common Humanity
Staff and running costs
Requested £3,250.00
Recommended £00.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

21911a Kirkby Lonsdale RUFC
New changing rooms
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21788 St George Community Parish Church
Refurbishment of flood relief hub
Requested £720.00
Recommended £720.00 
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21764b South Lakeland Hydrotherapy
New roof
Requested £10,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21773 Hallgarth Senior Citizens
Community Centre rent
Requested £500.00
Recommended £500.00 
Priority – Older people
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

21756 Witherslack Youth Club
Sessional Youth Worker
Requested £2,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – people with a disability
Charitable objectives - to provide services to beneficiaries

23

Agenda Item 6



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 19th December 2019

21912a Windermere Park for All
Play area equipment
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £2,000.00 
Priority – children and Young People
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries

21723 Sandylands Residents Association
Storage unit
Requesting £6,000 over 3 years or £2,000 per year.
Recommended 
Priority – Children & young people
Charitable objectives – To relieve beneficiaries who are in conditions of need, hardship 
or distress

24



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21921a

Project cost £19,500.00 Amount requested £5,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Eden Sight Support
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 3 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

125

Aims of the 
group

Eden Sight Support exists to provide support to vision impaired people in the district of Eden. 
ESS believes Blind and Partially sighted people should not be disadvantaged through 
disability, low income or lack of knowledge and should be made aware of:
Support through home visits, subsidised and personalised transport and access to social 
activities, in order to minimise the feeling of isolation and loneliness.
Our members can gain access to training in new skills including using assistive technology and 
developing computer and internet skills. Our members can find out about goods and services 
which will minimise the impact of their visual impairment, for example good quality 
magnifiers and books in audio format.
They can be provided with signposting to additional support that might be provided by 
statutory authorities in relation to their sight loss or other statutory and voluntary sector 
organisations in relation to additional needs.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

8 No. of approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£6962.00

Project Details
Project title Staff costs
Project detail The majority of our support is to predominantly elderly people and includes, general advice, 

demonstration of household adaptations, help in reading mail, writing letters and form filling as 
well as updating about activities or services. The aim of our work is to support people who 
through their impairment are particularly vulnerable to isolation, providing support to live as 
independently as possible in their own homes. We are seeking financial support to our services 
which include the provision of information, advice and guidance at our resource centre in 
Penrith and through monthly outreach provision in Appleby and Kirkby Stephen. We also 
provide a regular home visiting service to our members with different levels of visual 
impairment and sight loss who find it difficult to travel across Eden Valley. In addition we 
offer a telephone befriending service to support those who find real value in this form of 
regular contact and who are able to gain confidence in the knowledge that someone is able to 
offer additional support. We also provide regular activities where individuals can come 
together and share social time together through the afternoon tea group or theatre group. We 
are keen to develop more activities across the Valley.

Need Currently we have 100 members who access our services. They benefit from contact with staff 
and volunteers at our centre, through outreach, home visits and telephone befriending by 
feeling connected to wider society. Through these services they are informed and updated 
about opportunities and access to activities provided by ESS and others. Partners in the NHS 
and Adult Social Care Rehabilitation Officers in Visual Impairment regularly highlight our 
service to new clients, many of whom subsequently become members, particularly those who 
are older and vulnerable. Our members tell us how important access to support and services are 
to them, how they feel more confident in carrying out tasks sighted people take for granted and 
that they value the time we take to help them. They also tell us that they like to meet with other 
people and that getting involved in activities and outings makes them feel happy.

Disadvantage The loss of sight is a fundamental loss of a sense and as such can have a devastating impact on 
a person's quality of life, physical and mental health. Many of the things other people take for 
granted such as reading mail, filling out forms, operating mobile phones, tablets and computers 

25



requires a different and for some a new approach. Eden Valley is a large and disparate district 
where travel is not easy for anyone, for the visually impaired it can be incredibly difficult to get 
out of the home and travel, whether on public transport or not, which in some instance might 
require a high level of support. Everyday household tasks might necessitate adaptations. For 
some visually impaired people, isolation in the home is a real danger. Where this is also 
combined with economic disadvantage, due to loss of employment, lack of awareness of or 
access to relevant benefits, issues can quickly compound. Many of our members are elderly 
individuals in need of additional care and support due to their age and frailty and are therefore 
also at risk of being vulnerable

Benefits The main benefit of our services is that it fosters independence amongst people that are 
vulnerable and could easily become socially isolated. We provide a supportive and listening 
environment where we can enable blind and partially sighted people to feel confident in taking 
back control of their own lives and to experience opportunities and activities which may not 
otherwise be available. Our outreach drop ins or a regular home visit can help people feel 
engaged and a valuable member of their own community, have access to information that 
allows them to make informed decisions about all aspects of their lives. We focus on outcomes 
that increase confidence and engender independence, as well as developing social networks and 
personal skills in the use of adaptations and technology in order to keep connected and in touch 
with family and the wider community.

Measure We will ensure we collect feedback from members about the service and how and if we can 
improve what we do and its reach. We will also collate case studies of our service and its 
beneficiaries. As part of a recognition to update aspects of our work, we are developing 
measures to highlight the effectiveness of our services as part of a refreshed business plan. We 
have 100 members who access support through the ESS and will continue to seek feedback 
through our newsletter, as well as traditional opportunities to comment at the centre in Penrith 
and outreach venues and via the encouragement of comments, compliments and complaints.

After funding 
ends

We are going through a reshaping of some of our services and are currently involved in 
planning a partnership application to the National Lottery for crisis intervention support to 
visually impaired people across the County involving Societies in Barrow, Carlisle, South 
Lakes and West Cumbria. In light of this Eden Sight Support are adopting a systematic 
approach to our development with a business plan focused on meeting the needs of all visually 
impaired people of all ages in the Eden Valley, alongside a fundraising strategy that takes a 
more diverse approach to income generation. In this way we aim to become more sustainable 
in the future.

No of beneficiaries 100 No of volunteers 10

Expenditure
Staff costs: £5,000.00
Contribution towards staff (20 hours per week) cost of 
£11,400 per annum, inclusive of travel expenses and 
organisational overheads

 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00 £2000 from Cumbria County Council Community Grants, £3000 
from Masonic Charitable Trust

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Organisation works mainly with volunteers but has one part time member of staff, 11 
volunteers and 100 members.
They provide one to one support for information, demonstrate specialist equipment, 
befriending and training to visually impaired people, they can also signpost to other 
organisations.
This group are working with other sight support groups in Cumbria, they will work together on 
joint funding bids and business planning which can only strengthen provision across the 
County. 
This application will go to one of our other funds to help with the project costs as Holehird 
only covers Westmorland and the other funding will cover the remaining parts of Eden.

26



Priority - disabled people
Charitable objectives -To releive beneficiaries who are disabled by assisting  or relieving their 
suffering

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21811

Project cost £5,240.00 Amount requested £3,250.00
Amount 
recommended

£0.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Common Space Common Humanity
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

151

Aims of the 
group

Common space has been providing support and friendship to refugee families in South 
Lakeland since February 2018, bridging the gap between the support provided by Cumbria 
County Council and other agencies and the communities in which the families now live.
We aim to work with rather than for refugees and communities. Our approach focuses on a 
principal of neighbourliness: offering networks of 'familiar strangers' to newly arrived and 
isolated or excluded people who have been displaced by war, violent conflict or persecution.
This philosophy centres on the idea of positive and good neighbouring; absolutely retaining the 
autonomy of the individual yet, in the event of an emergency or event, bringing positive 
outcomes through attitudes and behaviours of support, friendship or practical assistance, in 
whatever form that must take.
Our objective is to see refugee individuals and families able to participate in local space in the 
same way as any other in our communities. Through providing a welcome, building 
relationships, one-to-one mentoring, social events and activities, advocacy and the supporting 
of statutory services we aim to improve confidence, knowledge, and English language, 
facilitate independence and inclusion in the local community, providing connections and 
working to evolve new and independent social networks.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Liaison Officer
Project detail The sustainability of our work with families, and the efficacy and learning culture of our 

approach requires the development of our model. Our activities to date have been managed and 
delivered solely by volunteers, providing 40+ volunteer hours each week. In order that we meet 
our aims and objectives, to work with, rather than for refugees and communities, we believe 
that we must better engage with our local refugee population and better listen and support our 
volunteer mentors. To make this possible we are looking to introduce two small salaried roles.
- A Liaison Officer, with lived experience of displacement and dual-language (Arabic and 
English) will help to facilitate improved communication and understanding between refugee 
individuals and families and the rest of our network; supporting us to take a highly reflective 
approach to our activities and contacts, ensuring that there is a strong experiential and cultural 
voice within the governance of our group, and helping us to produce written materials of 
benefit to existing and new arrivals.
- An Administrator, to ensure improved record keeping and communications within and out 
with our network, as well as to support the planning and coordinating of activities, including 
training and regular meetings. This will relieve pressure on existing volunteers and ensure that 
our coordinator and other members of our committee can focus more specifically on providing 
guidance and support to volunteers and steering our approach and activities in line with our 
aims and objectives.

Need We have taken an evolutionary ground-up approach to our activities, consulting widely with 
the existing community prior to the arrival of resettlement families, consulting with local 
services to establish their scope, with existing organisations working with refugees and asylum 
seekers in the region and other parts of the UK, with a small number of recently displaced 
individuals, and with academics working in the fields of migration and displacement. Through 

29



this approach we have built a network of partners and members, increased our knowledge and 
capacity to work with the local community and existing services, and shaped our early and 
ongoing work.
Our approach with refugee individuals and families has also been evolutionary. Building on 
our research and planning with the wider community, we took a responsive approach to 
working with ten individuals in 2018 quickly recognising that no individual was in need of the 
same support as another and finding we needed to adapt and adopt different approaches as we 
went. From this was born our mentor model which, taking our guiding principles and set within 
certain boundaries, is led by the individuals and families with which we work, and adapts 
accordingly to presenting needs at any given time. No individual or family is obligated to meet 
nor engage in this or in our other activities.
Prior to the arrival of new families, at the beginning of 2019, we carried out reflective feedback 
meetings, with two families, in which we sought to gain their views on their arrival 
experiences, their experiences with our group, what they felt worked or was helpful, and what 
was not and what was missing. In addition we asked for their views on what we should 
prioritise for new arrivals.
We frequently receive positive feedback from statutory services on our approach.

Disadvantage The impacts of conflict and displacement are widely recognised, this includes in resettlement 
environments where the interplay of trauma, violence, loss of family, friends, home and agency 
can have significant psychosocial consequences and place profound barriers on longer-term 
adjustment (UNICEF, 2004; Patel et al. 2008).
In addition, those accessing our services are from ethnic, cultural, and religious backgrounds of 
a significant minority in the area presenting additional challenges and have limited or no 
English, radically inhibiting their ability to live their lives independently in this country. This 
has repercussions on access to employment, on engaging in opportunities for their children and 
in their children's education, as well as in day-to-day interactions and social connections, 
presenting significant impacts on self-esteem and identity.
This group also typically presents high levels of stress and anxiety, disproportionately high 
health needs and health anxiety, unpredictable and inconsistent behaviour, depression and 
issues relating to parenting.
Language and culture present barriers in effectively accessing services, understanding UK 
systems, practicing and retaining cultural heritage and accessing new social and community 
networks. Local services in south Cumbria have limited experience or knowledge in 
responding to, or working with, diverse ethnic minorities, particularly minority groups from the 
Middle East, African countries and people who have experienced war and violent conflict. 
While there is designated local authority support for resettlement families many of the nuances 
of accessing services, the making of social connections and the inclusion in the fabric of 
communities remain unmet. In addition, this support tails off and comes to an end after a year, 
meaning the need for positive local relationships and neighbourly connections is ever more 
essential.

Benefits The culture and environment in which people live has a profound impact on the capabilities 
they have to access provision and opportunities in that context. For forced migrants, the shift in 
culture and environment is often huge and coupled with the impact of their experience of 
displacement, they face wide-reaching challenges in adapting to new environments. In 
addition, the success of towns and cities to welcome and include migrants into communities 
has repercussions for us all and in a climate of hostile and heightened anti-migrant attitudes 
and control, the role of civil society is crucial.
Our principal objective is to have an immediate and lasting impact on the way in which people 
who have experienced forced displacement experience their new community, mitigating, where 
we can, some of these challenges in adapting. We see this as requiring a responsive, flexible 
and individually-centred approach. This is the approach delivered by volunteers but guided, 
managed and supported by our coordinator and committee.
Our development approach is focussed on securing the sustainability of our offer and achieving 
the following outcomes:
1) To create a peer liaison role to ensure the voice of refugee individuals and families is central 
to what we do. 
2) To create a dedicated administrator who will improve the efficiency and organisation of our 
work. 
3) In turn, both roles will help to improve the consistency and efficacy of our work:
- enabling volunteers to focus on providing responsive and reflective support, and the 
coordinator and committee, to better support volunteer mentors to manage the impacts of their 
complex and challenging role.and for refugee individuals and families, continue to reduce 30



isolation and stress, and improve confidence, language, wellbeing and community networks.
Measure Part of the funding stream we are seeking is to support the employment of a primary liaison 

officer, a person with lived experience of displacement who is sufficiently established in a UK 
context to provide a bridging relationship between those we work with and our group. We see 
this role, that will include translation, and continual reflective practice around the needs and 
experiences of individuals and families, as a form of action-research, ensuring that we are 
continually considering the effectiveness of our way of working and that we work from a place 
that is with the people we aim to support rather than for them.
In addition, we keep (and aim through the establishment of these paid roles, to improve) a 
record and summary of our mentor contacts with individuals and families and use these 
periodically to discuss practices, challenges encountered and changes.
We currently provide a bi-annual report to CVS as part of their role in working between groups 
in the community and the local authority.
We would be very happy to provide additional reports to any funding bodies supporting our 
work.

After funding 
ends

Each individual we work with has diverse and entirely subjective needs. As such, putting a 
timeframe on our work is something we have chosen not to do. Our expectation however is that 
the demand for our service from individuals will begin to reduce during their second year in the 
UK or of working with our, or a similar service. For example, while an individual may no 
longer need weekly support or friendship - they may have been able to gain part time 
employment, offering significant benefits in terms of identity - they may still require 
significant support. They will likely still have limited written English, be unable to translate 
contractual documents, or manage telephone or medical appointments. They may now in fact 
have greater drive to establish themselves locally but still struggle with how to put that into 
action, they may be reflecting on their own or a family member’s mental health or high-stress 
and anxiety but need support to consider the different opportunities available to them and to 
access that service or an activity.
In addition, we are aware that there is a local authority commitment to house further 
resettlement families in our area but that the numbers and timing of new arrivals is uncertain. 
Should more families move into our area, we would be seeking further funding from statutory 
and other sources, beyond this current bid period, to ensure the offer of two-years of support is 
available to all newly arrived refugee individuals or families?

No of beneficiaries 18 No of volunteers 25

Expenditure
Staff costs: £3,120.00
Liaison Officer: 104 hours (2 hours per week for 1 year) 
at £15 per hour = £1,560  
Administrator: 208 hours (4 hours per week for 1 year) at 
£15 per hour = £3,120

Operational costs: £130.00
Travelling expenses for paid staff (estimated) £260

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£1,690.00 Since inception: 2017 coffee morning £12; 2018 £416 donations + 
£1200 grant (YWCA); 2019 Coffee morning £380 + music event 
£75 + £2000 grant (Cumbria County Council) of which £1690 is 
allocated specifically to this project

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Cumbria County Council Community Grants (£300) and local 
fundraising: office and overhead costs and staff travel costs.

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Constituted group set up in 2018 to support refugees in South Lakeland.
Previously volunteer ran but would now like to employ 2 part time members of staff, job 
descriptions supplied.
Their accounts ending August 2019 show an income of £2,264.20 and expenditure of £835.23 
with a carryover of £1,872.27.
The income is from donations and £1,200 of this is ring-fenced for children’s activities. 
Last year they worked with 10 people and this next year they would like to benefit 18 people.
I do have concerns about how they will be able to continue to fund 2 staff posts when they do 
not have a means of income other than donations and a little fund raising themselves.

Because of the number of applications to the fund and the fact that we would not be able to 
31



support the full amount requested from this fund. I will have to recommend reject.

32



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21911a

Project cost £6,996.00 Amount requested £5,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Kirkby Lonsdale Rugby Union Football Club Ltd
Post Town KIRKBY LONSDALE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

151

Aims of the 
group

The principal object of the Club shall be to provide facilities for and promote participation by 
the whole community in the Game and in pursuance of such principal object the ancillary 
objects of the club shall be to;
Promote, encourage and foster the Game for the benefit of the Members including (but not 
limited to) the coaching thereof at all levels.
Promote, encourage and foster the Game at all levels in the area of the Ground and the 
surrounding areas. Ensure that the Game is played in accordance with the Laws of the Game 
and is administered with the IRB Regulations and the Rules of the Union.
undertake such matches and fixtures and other activities as the committee may decide maintain 
and develop the Ground at Underley Park, Kirkby Lonsdale or such other location as the 
Committee may from time to time determine as the headquarters of the Club and as a venue for 
playing the game and conducting the other activities of the Club so as to provide the best 
possible facilities for Members and those visiting the Ground strengthen the bonds between the 
Club and local community in the areas surrounding the club.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

6 No. of approved 
grants

2 Total Amount 
Awarded

£1860.00

Project Details
Project title New changing rooms
Project detail Due to the increased participation of players at the club, both male and female, the club has had 

to build new changing facilities. We are now at the point where we have 8 changing rooms to 
fit out and 3 have been completed. With the grant we want to finish another changing room and 
the money will go build and install seating, install clothes hook rails, plumb in shower control 
unit and heads, fit hand basins and taps, fit hygienic wall cladding to shower, wash basins and 
toilet areas, fit hand dryers and soap dispensers, paint un cladded walls and ceilings.

Need Part of the aims and objectives of the club is to continue to provide the best facilities we can 
and we carried out a survey of members and one of the comments that came back was that the 
changing rooms were not fit for purpose and having engaged local architects who spoke with 
Sport England we have produced a plan and layout of the changing rooms to meet their 
standards. Each changing room has its own WCs, its own changing area and its own showering 
area. The feedback we have received is that the upgrade has been very welcome and are being 
used by males and females of all ages.

Disadvantage The current facilities are poor but this is a project that is sport based and not many of our 
members are disadvantaged.

Benefits Part of our objectives under the Industrial provident act is to improve our facilities and this was 
also emphasised in a survey carried out by members which then became part of our 
development plan because it became increasingly clear that our facilities were not fit for 
purpose and needed improving. We expect by providing these new facilities our members will 
use them rather than going home for a shower and it will allow us to hold more matches and 
tournaments across all age groups and genders.
We are also looking to develop other activities at the club and these facilities will allow other 
sports to be entertained, ie rounder’s in summer.

Measure We shall monitor the number of times these new changing rooms are being used, and the 
number of teams that use them. We have seen, for instance that the women’s rugby is 33



improving because of these new facilities and that the number of games played at our facility 
has also grown accordingly. We have already been able to host mini and junior tournaments 
but the number of teams that we can now host has grown and will continue to grow.

After funding 
ends

When all the changing rooms and toilet facilities are complete then this will end the project.

No of beneficiaries 250 No of volunteers 50

Expenditure
Capital costs: £5,000.00
Changing area - seating etc
To build and install seating.
To build and install coat/clothes hook rails.
Partitions, doors and fittings.                        £1400.00

Plumbing - showers, toilets, wash basins
Shower control unit and Heads
Hand Basins and Taps
All associated plumbing pipework              £1800.00

(wet)Wall coverings.
Hygienic plastic wall cladding to shower, wash basin and 
toilet areas £1900.0

Other Fittings.
To fit Soap Dispensers, mirror and Hand Dryer   £180.00

Painting.
To paint all uncladded walls and ceilings   £550.00

Total   £5830.00
VAT £1166.00
Total incl vat £6996.00

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£1,500.00 Harold Bridges charity.Secured £1500.

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Banks community Fund Applied for £3000.

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

The application is from Kirkby Lonsdale Rugby Union Football Club Ltd, an Industrial and 
Provident registered organisation (No. No30046R). The club was established in 1877, and at 
present have 20 teams from Under 6s to Senior teams. The club also have 4 dedicated female 
teams (U13, U15,U18 and senior levels).
The current application is for funding towards changing room renovations, including new 
partitions, showers/toilets and seating. The full cost of the project is £6,996, with £1,500 being 
raised already. The current application is for £5,000 and has been allocated to both the 
Holehird and Beeby funds.

Latest accounts (ending April 2019) show income of £508,972 and expenditure of £475,803. 
The vast majority of income came from bar and catering (clubhouse activities) which 
amounted to £162k, and commercial and sponsorship activities which raised £169k. 
Membership subscriptions accounted for £55,950 of income. Recent banking shows £13,145.

The club have a well-developed programme and team structure (especially for children and 
younger age-groups). 
Recommend contribution and this application will also go to one of our other funds for £1,000

34



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21788

Project cost £2,829.00 Amount requested £720.00
Amount 
recommended

£720.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation The Parish Church of St George, Kendal
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

151

Aims of the 
group

We are a fully operational parish church, totally committed to serving our community.
Accordingly and in addition to providing religious services, we facilitate a large number of 
community support projects.  These include  continuing Flood Relief Hub, Manna House 
support including Winter Shelter for rough sleepers, base for Alcoholics Anonymous, 
Ballroom and Latin American Dance Group, Dance Atikk, Highgate Arts Group, Brownies,  
Badminton Club, donation point for Food Bank, centre for concerts, designated safe area for 
local community in case of future flooding.
Daytime training courses held on site including Kendal College, Cumbria County Council, 
venue for community concerts.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

3 No. of approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£3915.35

Project Details
Project title Refurbishment of community flood relief hub
Project detail Our overall project centres around the safety, accessibility and effectiveness of use of the 

community available spaces within St. George’s buildings.  It is our aim to develop the access 
and usability of our building for local people of all ages , helping to provide, in the process, a 
venue our parishioners feel safe and comfortable to use to give support to those in need and as 
a base for a wide range of community events and activities.  There is now a pressing need to 
upgrade the physical condition and long term usefulness of the upstairs room following some 
extensive work to stabilise the plasterwork which has exhausted our funds. The St. George’s 
Centre has been selected to be the Community Hub for future evacuations for floods and other 
local emergencies involving home evacuation.  This among other things involves being able to 
provide overnight shelter for displaced families and provision through the kitchen for feeding 
those in need and volunteer teams working in the area.  Accordingly the “Upper Room” has 
been allocated for this work.  This is a community use room which is as large as a badminton 
court and has been used for the Homeless Winter Shelter project linked to Manna House.  It 
has also extensive use as a dance venue for Kendal Dance Atikk all age group who use it nearly 
every day of the week and as practice venue for a number of community drama and arts 
groups.   The 7th Kendal Brownie Pack use it as their base.

Need All the planning for this project has been carried out by local people and particularly members 
of the community affected by the 2015 floods following Storm Desmond.  They have received 
help and recommendations from the Kendal Fire and Rescue Service, Kendal Flood Recovery 
organisation and Castle Fire Ltd, New Hutton, Kendal, and the local police force (DC 
Appleyard).  The constant attendance by our user groups at the activities we are providing tells 
us we are meeting a very real need.  The people using the Flood Relief Hub give verbal 
feedback each week concerning their appreciation and the value they place on having a 
collecting point to give and receive the views of the community who are continuing to be 
affected by the aftermath of Storm Desmond flooding. Please see Gazette report from 
residents.  From these consultations it has been necessary to install a fire early warning system 
which particularly protects users of the Upper Room by giving them early warning of a fire in 
another part of the building.  This came about after there were two police and fire attended 
incidents where small malicious fires were started in rooms at the far end of the church to the 
entrance to the Upper Room.  One of these incidents occurred while the young people were 

35



using the Upper Room as a dance studio.
Disadvantage Flood damage caused to homes in the vicinity- families remain disadvantaged following flood 

damage to their homes e.g. higher insurance premiums, recovery costs, mental health impact, 
fear of future flooding . This is ever present for people who have experienced the trauma of 
their homes being deluged.
People in the community suffering substance abuse are based within the church and given 
access through us to help and support. Support for the community at Ann House Ann Street 
Kendal - residential centre for adults with learning difficulties and mental health issues.

Benefits It is the overall intention to re- decorate the Upper Room and bring it up to standard as a 
community use venue and a self-help scheme is being drawn up by the St. George’s members 
volunteers.  As you will be able to see from the enclosed photographs the condition of the 
decoration and overall fabric of the room is very uninviting and as such is not attractive to new 
enquiring community user groups, and is only tolerated by existing groups out of loyalty.   It is 
envisaged that the accessible areas of the spiral staircase common entrance to the room will be 
a self-help job but that specialist decorator’s tower equipment is needed to safely reach the 
high areas of wall and ceilings.  Volunteers are willing to operate such a tower and help is on 
hand to erect it and move it around the room to achieve the purpose of safely reaching the 
higher parts of the room.
The churches health and safety policy and insurance will cover all volunteer work on this 
project.

Measure The Project is run by the Priest in Charge (SSM = Self Supporting Minister), a part-time 
administrator (paid by Beacon Team) and a small community team of unpaid volunteers.
The St. Georges Parochial Church Council (appointed by the church members) are legally 
responsible for the activities of the organisation. Two democratically appointed church 
wardens carry out the management duties of all the services and many of the community 
activities.  The using organisations all have their own management setups including being 
responsible for DBS compliance and risk assessments for using their part of the premises.
The St. George’s PCC and Wardens review all ongoing projects at their regularly scheduled 
and minuted meetings.  For this project it will be the responsibility of the Church Wardens to 
monitor and report back on progress to the PCC members.  The success of the Project will be 
seen when the Upper Room is presentable and functional with stable and decorated walls and 
ceilings and new fire equipment is seen to provide the intended safeguards to all the centre 
users.  Additionally it will be a requirement that the safeguard fire/evacuation system can be 
demonstrated to be operational by testing and practice evacuation training.
Fire Safety Officer Suzanne Wainwright will be revisiting the Church to ensure her 
recommendations are completed.  These include the improvements to the two entrances (as fire 
escapes routes) to the Upper Room.

After funding 
ends

The funding will enable us to future proof the use and flexibility of our facilities.  In practice 
this will mean we can offer the Upper Room to our community use groups well into the future 
knowing we are presenting them with a safe and well maintained as well as visually pleasing 
base to work in.  One of the user groups has agreed to provide labour and materials to re order 
the storage facility of the upper room when decorating is complete.

No of beneficiaries 300 No of volunteers 15

Expenditure
Capital costs: £720.00
Paint  Please see calculations attached to  estimates 
document  = £180
Tower scaffold  = £515
Painting Kit  = £25

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£2,109.00 Self help donation from St.Georges volunteers  £75 Grant from 
Frieda Scott Trust for Fire Safety work £ 2034

Applying 
Elsewhere

No None

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
36



Assessor’s 
comments 

A building that was used as a flood relief centre in Kendal after Storm Desmond.
A well-used community facility which also provides space for a number of groups including 
brownies, parent and toddler groups and keep fit classes. They have refurbish their kitchen, and 
have plastered some of the community room walls which now needs redecorating.  
Photographs have been provide of the room and the redecoration needed. 

They were open as a flood relief centre 7 days a week during the floods and they are now 
linking with Manna House to support homeless people during the winter months. 
Volunteers will complete the work and they are applying for paint and equipment.  
Recommend

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21764c

Project cost £230,000.00 Amount requested £10,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation South Lakeland Hydrotherapy (Trust) Limited
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

50

Aims of the 
group

The objectives of the charity are to advance, promote and support the provision of 
hydrotherapy facilities for the benefit of inhabitants of and visitors to the area of South 
Lakeland and surrounding districts with medical and/or special needs (including the disabled 
and/or elderly) and to do all or any of:
 
Organise fund-raising and obtain donations and other financial support in order to assist those 
engaged in the provision of the facilities,

Provide grants and other forms of financial assistance for the equipping and operation of the 
facilities,

Provide equipment and manpower and other services which may assist those engaged in the 
provision of the facilities,

Act as a funding partner with and/or become involved in the management operation of those 
engaged in the provision of the facilities,

Provide advice and assistance to those engaged in the ownership and/or operation of the 
facilities,

Provide advice and assistance to those (and to the families of those) having such medical 
and/or special conditions and who may benefit from the use of the facilities,

Own and/or operate and/or manage all or any aspects of the facilities including the ownership 
and/or operation of any land or buildings or equipment or undertaking involved in doing so.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Renewable Energy and New Pool Roof Project
Project detail We wish to install a new roof with solar and PV panels to reduce energy consumption and heat 

loss, reduce the Carbon footprint and make Sandgate Pool more sustainable and efficient. We 
aim to complete in 2019.
The future of Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool will depend on being able to continue providing a 
first-class hydrotherapy service at the best possible costs. The Project will address the 
escalating costs of providing hydrotherapy services and will be environmentally friendly 
maximizing the use of ‘green energy’ and energy conservation.
The project will be costly, and we have been specifically raising funds for the last three years. 
We need to avoid passing on the rising energy costs which are a significant part of our budget, 
to the Pool users by reducing the burden as much as possible by making the pool more energy 
efficient and utilising renewable energy technology. 
It will deliver a reduction in running costs, resulting in increased sustainability enabling us to 
continue the prudent management of the pool and demonstrate a commitment to reducing 
carbon emissions. The options available for reducing energy costs were assessed and 

39



recommended in the Cumbria Action for Sustainability (CAfS) report (available). This report 
showed that the roof which is a double skinned fibre-glass roof and is over 40 years old loses 
about 35% of heat energy. A survey by Lakes Renewables and Align Properties reported that it 
was NOT possible to install Solar/PV Panels on the present ‘wave’ roof which will NEED to 
be replaced.

Need It is obvious to Pool users that the 40-year-old roof is in a poor state which will not last and 
that it is right for this 'Health Care Facility' to have a 'green' footprint, Without this 
improvement, the Pool would not be ab;e to continue providing the valuable hydrotherapy 
service. The community and Pool users have supported this particular project for over 3 years 
raising about £30,000 from raffles, coffee mornings, quizzes, Bingo and race nights, fashion 
shows and much more. This is the community and the Pool Users speaking up very loudly that 
they WANT and NEED this facility. Attendance figures recorded that in 2010 over 20,000 
individual user sessions per year which are now at 22,000 per year. In 2018-19 there were over 
200 new medical referrals to the Hydrotherapy Pool.
Hydrotherapy treatment is therapeutic and assists with relaxation, decreases pain, increases 
muscle strength and enhances overall mobility of the patient.  The key benefits of hydrotherapy 
are from the heated water and resistance that the water provides.

The impact of this is far-reaching and multi-faceted. Some of the conditions that hydrotherapy 
can help are: 
Neurological conditions e.g. strokes and brain and spinal cord injuries, Multiple Sclerosis, 
Muscular Dystrophy
Musculo Skeletal Conditions 
Pain Relief
Orthopaedic conditions e.g. trauma (fractures and soft tissue injuries), arthritis, pre and post 
joint replacement and amputation
Spinal conditions e.g. acute and chronic lower back pain and pre and post spinal surgery
Chronic rheumatologicall conditions such as rheumatoid arthritis, fibromyalgia and chronic 
fatigue syndrome.
Sensory or learning or profound and multiple difficulties
Mental Health Patients and Psychological well-being
Terminally-ill Patients
Hydrotherapy has been around for a long time but is not core to NHS service delivery. 
(Margaret Reid Campion, Hydrotherapy, Principles and Practice, 1997)

The NHS Ten Year Forward view identifies the need for a radical upgrade in prevention and 
public health keeping patients out of the hospital. Endorsing exercise through hydrotherapy 
encourages exercise in the community, which patients can continue independently, giving them 
greater control of their own care and encouraging healthy lifestyle choices.
People that have experienced severe pain frequently suffer ‘fear-avoidance’ to exercise and 
movement in case the pain returns. This results in deconditioning and secondary health 
problems. Many patients are unable to exercise on land but can do so in the water, so 
hydrotherapy provides rehabilitation that they would otherwise be unable to access.

Disadvantage The groups that we serve are certainly the most vulnerable and marginalised people of our 
community as they have physical and mental illnesses severely disabling them temporarily or 
permanently. They are either on pensions, children and adults needing care, not working due to 
ill health and have little spare income.
The Pool provides almost 22,000 individual hydrotherapy user sessions per year to the most 
vulnerable of our community. Those with Physical and Mental Health conditions and the 
increasing elderly population all receive a great benefit not available elsewhere.
The Trust through Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool offers a unique service to the population of 
Cumbria and Lancashire, the benefits of hydrotherapy have been well known for many years. 
The Pool offers these benefits in a supportive environment that affords privacy. Key benefits 
include the ability to: Move more easily Relax your body Regain fitness following an operation 
or accident Ease pain Perform gentle all-body exercises Improve circulation and breathing 
Build self-confidence The Trust has a number of key objectives including providing therapy at 
an affordable cost in a Pool heated to 94˚F (10˚F higher than a public swimming pool). With 
personal/specialist sessions to facilitate confidence-building and emotional support in an 
environment for social interaction
The Pool is open seven days a week 12 hours a day for week-days and about 6 hours on 
Saturday and Sunday. UHMB NHS FT (Consultants and Physiotherapists), Medical General 
Practitioners and Physiotherapists currently refer patients to Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool along 40



with Health and Care Groups (Cancer Care, Arthritis Care, Multiple Sclerosis, Breast Care, 
Stroke Club, Sight Advice, Adult learning and training groups, Whinfell and Windmill, 
Headway, Sandgate, Underley Schools, WOSP (Kendal Day Services)
Cost is a major issue due to transport, low income and need for carers, the burden is reduced by 
keeping pool costs low.

Benefits The pool offers a unique service to the people of Cumbria. It offers the known benefits of 
hydrotherapy in a supportive environment that builds confidence and allows privacy. The 
benefits include improved mobility, easing of pain and growth in confidence. Our main 
objectives are to deliver this therapy at an affordable cost (so as not to exclude the vulnerable 
users), to provide personalised and specialist sessions and to maintain the pool environment to 
a high standard.
The pool costs around £140,000 a year to run and brings in over £80,000 in income form pool 
charges. We would not want to see an increase in pool charges and currently as can be seen 
from the timetable the pool is operating at high capacity. Higher charges would be prohibitive 
and discriminatory to the most vulnerable users of the Pool. 
We have significantly reduced running costs in the last few years by improving the equipment 
that is used to sanitise and heat the pool which has saved money. It is now a priority to 
undertake the improvements suggested in the Cumbria Action for Sustainability (CAfS) energy 
report (attached) to further lower energy costs by about 35%. 
To ensure the pool remained viable the South Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust (SLHT) with 
charitable status was formed in 2002 and has now a working partnership with CCC along with 
grant funding from other major stakeholders. In the last financial year (2016-17) the pool’s 
operating costs were £143,000.
Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool is open seven days a week averaging 22,000 individual user 
sessions per year.
All Health Care agencies and Local Councils are under severe budgetary pressures and the loss 
of secured funding from any of our partners will jeopardise the viability of the hydrotherapy 
service.

Measure The major evaluation will be the energy costs which should be significantly lower and the 
environment should be significantly improved. This will be reflected in the Energy charges.
The full cost analysis is given in the attached CAfS and Align Properties Reports.
We evaluate input as the number of sessions we provide, (Open 7 days per week, 12 hours per 
weekday and about 6 hours Saturday and Sunday) allowing maximum flexibility and the staff 
band running costs to provide this service. The Output is measured as the number of individual 
user sessions taken up (about 22,000 per year). The Outcomes are measured using The 
Measure Your Medical Outcome Profile (MYMOP), a nationally recognised assessment where 
patients complete the assessment form when they start Hydrotherapy and at then at set intervals 
afterwards.

After funding 
ends

This is a one-off capital project, the roof is over 40 years old, is a double skinned fibreglass 
structure losing about 30% of the heat energy produced. The New Roof with Solar and PV 
panels will sustain the future and viability of the Hydrotherapy Pool.
The purpose of this project is to become as self-sufficient as possible for our energy needs for 
two reasons.
1- to reduce our energy costs in order to make the pool as sustainable as possible. As running 
costs rise in the future, the economic argument for keeping the pool could weaken. Our 
principal goal is to create a more sustainable future for the pool so that the reliance on ad hoc 
funding is diminished and uncertainty around funding is not a threat. With one of the biggest 
costs being energy to maintain the high-temperature levels, to reduce heating bills would 
certainly help to create sustainability.
2- to reduce our carbon footprint. As a trust, we are committed to reducing carbon emissions 
and our recently installed new boilers have made a big impact on energy usage. We are also in 
the process of addressing other energy leaks identified in our CAfS report which will also 
contribute to a reduction in usage. However, there is only so much that can be achieved given 
the nature of the pool environment. Creating and conserving our own green energy is the next 
logical step.

No of beneficiaries 600 No of volunteers 20

Expenditure
Capital costs: £10,000.00
Align Fees        £12,974
Asbestos           £1,500

41



Ecology             £1,000
Concrete Cover £1,000
Construction      £211,730

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£170,000.00 SLDC - LIP Fund £15k, Frieda Scott Trust £5k, Mayor of Kendal 
Fund £10k, CAfS £0.8k, Sir John Fisher £10k, Croppers Ltd £1k, 
CoOp £1.6k, £30+K from our own events, also donations from 
previous years.

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

The pool, built in 1977, is maintained and managed by Cumbria County Council and is 
supported through a partnership with the applicant, a registered charity (no. 1094280), set up in 
2002. 

The initial fundraising to build the pool was led by members of Westmorland Mencap, which 
has continued its support for the pool ever since, more latterly through the trustees of South 
Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust. The pool is open seven days a week, 12 hours a day for 
weekdays and about 6 hours on Saturday and Sunday

Due to the unique nature of the services provided at the pool, it has secured long term 
partnership funding arrangements with a number of key stakeholders, these being Cumbria 
Clinical Commissioning Group, South Lakeland District Council, and Kendal Town Council. 
Further fundraising is done by the charity towards improvements of the building and are now 
focused on reducing operating costs and increasing energy efficiency of the pool.

The pool costs around £140,000 a year to run and brings in over £80,000 in income form pool 
charges. Six months accounts ending 30 Sept 2019 show income of £8,023, expenditure of 
£7,149. Grants received totalled £40,500. Unrestricted funds stand at £127,173.

During 2017-18, over 21,050 individual visits were made to the pool. The rehabilitative 
hydrotherapy programme can provide cost-effective therapy and help patients to improve their 
health and mobility, resulting in fewer GP appointments and the need for further prescriptions 
and reduce the burden on physiotherapy departments. 

The charity has raised £170K to install a new roof and solar panels, which will ultimately save 
money in the long-term. A popular and well-used facility. Quote and tender document 
received. Recommend a contribution if funds allow.

42



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21773

Project cost £900.00 Amount requested £500.00
Amount 
recommended

£500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Hallgarth Senior Citizens
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 3 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

145

Aims of the 
group

The group Constitution states:
'The purpose of the Group is to promote the social and intellectual wellbeing in the Hallgarth 
Estate area through congenial companionship, healthy discussion and such pursuits as from 
time to time may be agreed upon.'
This is provided at our weekly meeting by visiting speakers, games, quizzes, parties, lunches 
and coach outings and various other events.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

1 No. of approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Community Centre rents
Project detail Over the past few years the group has been losing money in the general running of the group, 

however we have been able to keep the accounts at a reasonable level due to grants from 
various organisations.   In order to allow the group to have a secure future we will have to 
explore each year for a new organisation to fund our ongoing expenses.

Need For the 10 years I have been a member the number of members has grown slightly even though 
we have had several deaths and all members are keen for the weekly meetings to continue.   
We have no evidence but we have an average weekly attendance of 30 members.

Disadvantage Hallgarth is a deprived area and members are pensioners and many come by local bus or come 
with the volunteer driver service.   Several have disabilities with walking, bad backs and other 
infirmities associated with old age, some starting with dementia.

Benefits For 25 years the older generation of Hallgarth Estate and the surrounding areas have enjoyed 
weekly meetings in the Hallgarth Community Centre and the companionship and interaction 
this provides.   They especially enjoy parties, lunches and coach outings but these are 
expensive and guest speaker's expenses are increasing along with everything else.

Measure If we continue to attract new members and keep the attendance at the present level we will 
consider that members believe the benefits are worth attending for.   Also we have an AGM at 
which members freely give their opinion of the last year and request new activities.

After funding 
ends

We will again be seeking grants to support this on-going work and probably returning to 
previous granters.

No of beneficiaries 42 No of volunteers 0

Expenditure
Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £500.00
Our weekly rent is £15.00 and we meet 52 weeks of the 
year.   I have not include the extra rent we pay for 
additional event such as parties.
 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00 Kendal Town Council.   £500, awaiting decision.

43



Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Constituted charitable older peoples support group that meets in Hallgarth Community Centre 
every Thursday between 10m and 12 noon. 
They would like to apply for a contribution to the rental costs of the Hall.
They fundraise for themselves with raffles, coffee mornings and fairs.  Their main income and 
expenditure is for trips and lunches for the group, they have 35 members.

Their expenditure last year was £6,835.77 and they have just under £2,000 in their bank 
account.
Recommend a contribution if funds allow

44



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21756

Project cost £2,604.00 Amount requested £2,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Witherslack Youth Club (Monkey Business)
Post Town GRANGE-OVER-SANDS District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 2 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

157

Aims of the 
group

The Witherslack youth club has been running a club on Friday night for many years now. This 
is small volunteer led club with children aged between 8 years and 16 years attending together, 
this works because the older group support the younger group to participate and enjoy the 
activities. 
Over the last year there have been 34 children attending on a regular basis. The main aim of 
the club is to provide a safe, welcoming space to gain personal and social life skills outside of 
home and school. 
This is a very rural and disparate community where young people often do not meet outside of 
school other than at the club. It is also the case that the club offers a wide range of activities 
which in the long term widens horizons and builds lifelong interests.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

11 No. of approved 
grants

8 Total Amount 
Awarded

£12539.00

Project Details
Project title Staff and activity costs
Project detail It is the aim of the committee to be in a position to pay for a qualified youth worker to work 

alongside volunteers giving support & guidance and leadership to the club. This was very 
successful last year in ensuring the quality and consistency of a regular club night. We are 
asking for support to cover the cost of a paid free-lance youth worker for the sustainability and 
continuation of our club.

The youth club is held at Witherslack Village Hall once a fortnight, term time, with trips / 
activities offsite taking place during the school holidays.  
The youth club programme is planned by the young people who suggest ideas for activities and 
trips they would like to undertake. The older members primarily enjoy the space to socialise 
with friends, listen to music and the freedom to choose what activities they take part in. At 
every session there are sports and a craft or cooking activity.
In the last year many winter youth club sessions were spent playing numerous games of 
dodgeball, as this is what the young people enjoy most. We have also had badminton and table 
tennis tournaments and played pool. In the summer we have visited the nearby Allithwaite 
playing fields so we could play rounder’s and football in a tick free environment.

Need At the end of Term all members of the club were asked about their experience of coming to the 
club and what difference it had made to their lives. One young man said 'it was the best thing 
that happened in his week'. The members said it was important to them that they were able to 
meet and enjoy activities together at the village hall. Parents feel that a local club is important 
in that transport is not required as they spend a lot of time as a taxi to and from Grange or 
Kendal etc. The parents comment
on the fact that the club offers activities the families would not normally have time to do. The 
wider community feel that it is important for community life to have a thriving school and 
youth club.

Disadvantage The children, young people and families are rurally disadvantaged in that there is a lack of 
facilities, services, transport and opportunities for social engagement. 
A proportion of the children and young people are from families who work in the farming or 
service industry both of which are low paid and have anti-social hours.

45



Benefits Access to the youth club gives the young people the opportunity to; 
 meet friends and enjoy time outside of school
 have fun in a safe place where social skills can be built and poor behaviour can be challenged  
have access to a qualified and experienced youth worker to discuss issues in confidence access 
information on a range of issues based topics; physical & mental health, relationships, lifestyle 
choices learn new skills and experience activities that could become long term hobbies or 
interests build a sense of community within the group and with the village 
Regular attendance will support the young people to make and engage with friends, build 
social and personal skills in a supported environment.  They have the opportunity to plan and 
evaluate the clubs activities, enjoying access to a facility outside the home and school.

Measure The youth club committee and leaders will monitor the youth club activities and engagement 
through; 
• Completion of a session attendance sheet- to measure retention. 
• End of term evaluation session with members- to measure satisfaction and suitability
• Financial account spread sheet- to monitor expenditure and income

All of which will be available during termly committee meetings.  The creation each term of a 
diverse programme of activities and opportunities will ensure engagement & participation.

After funding 
ends

The youth club will always need support from the community and local funders to enable it to 
run successfully.  It is the role of the management committee to ensure the funding is in place 
each year to enable the continuation.

No of beneficiaries 35 No of volunteers 3

Expenditure
Staff costs: £1,500.00
youth worker x 19 sessions £1,544

Operational costs: £500.00
towards the subsidy of trips and activities during school 
holiday periods

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £0.00
insurance £310
hall hire £250

 

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£675.00 375 Parish Council, 300 Dean Barwick Trust

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes application to parish council early 2020

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Witherslack is a small village between Levens and Lindal in the south of Cumbria. 

Witherslack is quite scattered with four distinct areas. Townend, Mill Side, Beck Head and the 
school/church. Townend is considered the centre of the village and contains the local pub, The 
Derby Arms, and the Community Shop. Mill Side is the location of the old Mill and still 
contains the mill pond. Beck Head lies to the north of Mill Side. 

Very rural village who's youth club is run by volunteers but need the expertise of a qualified 
youth worker to support the volunteers.
Funding id requested to help provide this expertise.
Recommend support

46



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21912a

Project cost £200,000.00 Amount requested £5,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£2,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Windermere Park For All
Post Town WINDERMERE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

Aims of the 
group

‘Windermere Park For All’ was officially established in November 2017 with a committee 
made up of local parents and residents and chaired by our councillor Ben Berry. 

We are a community group with the aim of raising £200k to refurbish, extend and revitalise the 
public play areas at Queen’s Park in Windermere to create a new and more exciting activity 
space for a wider range of age groups and physical abilities.

Our objective is not only to raise the required funds, but also to keep the local community 
involved at every stage of the process while at the same time working closely with South 
Lakeland District Council who own the land and current playground. This will ensure that the 
final play space takes into account the opinions, needs and wishes of local children and 
residents who will be using this area.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Play park improvements
Project detail The existing play equipment is over fifteen years old and is so well used by the local 

community and tourists alike that it is now in desperate need of an upgrade and expansion. The 
play area is used all year round by a large number of children, but does not provide good play 
value for all ages and is not exciting or challenging. There is very little equipment designed for 
the 8+ age bracket in particular. The available space is not fully utilised and it does not 
currently cater for a wide enough range of ages or abilities. Over the past few years, there have 
also been instances of anti-social behaviour due to the lack of facilities and activity provision 
for older children in the town.

Our plan is for the existing playground to be fully replaced and refurbished with new 
equipment and safety surfacing. The current Skate Park will be improved and updated with 
new equipment and a brand new Pump Track will be built, which we hope will address the 
needs of older children. The park will also host areas for local wildlife with a sensory and wild 
garden situated near the playground, a football kick wall and picnic areas. Improved 
landscaping will make the park a more welcoming area for the community and visitors to the 
town.

Need The initial impetus for the project came from local parents who regularly visit the park, noted 
the tired state of the play area and wanted to do something to improve this facility both for their 
children and the wider community.  

Once the fundraising group had been formally set up we held session’s at all local primary and 
secondary schools to find out from the children and young people what exactly they would like 
to see if the play area was redeveloped. This feedback has been incorporated into our designs. 
We also held a public consultation to enable local residents to understand our plans and give 
their views. All of these events produced overwhelming support for a revitalised play space.

We have the strong backing of local businesses, residents, primary and secondary schools and 
47



play experts who have been involved since the project's inception. We are also working with 
the local Police Community Support Officers and their colleagues who fully support the project 
and its aims.

Disadvantage A local health study from 2015 (ONS) recorded that 25.4 % of reception pupils in South 
Lakeland were overweight or obese. This figure was 30.3% of Year 6 pupils in South Lakeland 
for 2017.

Although Windermere is located in the Lake District National Park, young people still gravitate 
towards the local park in their free time and there is currently very little for them to do there. 
As a result, over the past few years there have been instances of anti-social behaviour.

In addition, both of the children’s indoor play centres in nearby Ambleside and Bowness have 
closed down, making it even more difficult for local families to find affordable options for their 
children to burn off energy.

The local area does have many tourist-oriented outdoor attractions, but prices are often geared 
to the visitor market. Queen’s park is an important free and safe local resource that all families, 
in any income bracket, can easily access all the time. But it is currently not fulfilling its 
potential.

Benefits We hope the new play facilities will offer a better, more exciting and challenging range of play 
experiences to a much wider age group, including new elements which are accessible to users 
with different physical abilities. It will allow children of different ages to play together and 
provide more play opportunities especially for children in the 8+ age bracket. Better use will be 
made of the available space and the park will become a more welcoming and inclusive facility 
for all.

More tailored spaces for older children and young people will hopefully help to combat the 
anti-social behaviour and give them a park that they are invested in and can be proud of.

A flagship play facility should also encourage more local families to make better use of it, in 
all weathers and at all times of the year, helping to increase the amount of time that young 
children spend doing physical activity. 

There are approximately 1400 local school children in Windermere and around 200 in the 0-5 
age bracket, plus young people who live in Windermere but attend schools in Kendal or further 
afield (Source: latest Ofsted reports and ONS). All of these would benefit immediately from an 
improved play and activity space. 

The park is also well used by tourists and visitors to the area. An attractive, appealing and 
multi-age play space would provide another free outdoor healthy option for visiting families.

Measure Six months after completion, we plan to carry out another survey of park users and local 
residents to gauge their opinions on the success of the redevelopment. We will also remain in 
contact with the local police department to assess what impact the new facilities have had on 
levels of anti-social behaviour in the area.

After funding 
ends

Once the new play facilities have been purchased and installed our role is finished and South 
Lakeland District Council, which owns the land, has committed to funding and managing their 
ongoing upkeep and maintenance.

No of beneficiaries 1400 No of volunteers 0

Expenditure
Staff costs: 
None

Capital costs: £5,000.00
Playground - £100,000
Pump Track - £30,000
Skate Park - £50,000
Landscaping, benches, football kick wall area - £20,000

The land and current playground are owned by South 
Lakeland District Council. We do not currently have 
quotes for the project as SLDC have a strict procurement 
process. The Tender will be advertised on a framework 
which will invite play companies to submit their designs. 
These will then be evaluated by SLDC Officers. This 
process can not start until all the funding has been raised. 
The cost estimates have therefore been based on advice 
48



given by local play specialists and the cost of similar 
local playgrounds recently refurbished.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£47,157.59 Big Lottery - £30k, LIPS - £10k, SLDC play budget - £5k, 
Ambleside, Windermere and District Round Table - £1k, Local 
Councillor donation - £500, Table top sale - £182.59, Sponsored run 
- £145, Cinderella Me fundraiser - £100, Elf Trail £230

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Sport England - £50k, Wooden Spoon Charitable Fund - £50k, 
Police and Crime Commissioners Fund - £2.5k, Frieda Scott - £3.5k, 
Bryan Lancaster Trust £500, various other local companies and 
charitable groups - any donation

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Windermere Park for All is a constituted group that is working with the local Authorities to 
provide a new playground and outdoor activity space on Windermere’s Queen’s Park (more 
commonly known as The Rec). The group was not set up by the Council, but by residents keen 
to improve this asset for the town. 
The group started in 2017 and have 6 committee members. They have included schools, local 
children, Police and South Lakeland District Council in their consultation.  SLDC will 
maintain and insure the area once all the work is completed.  They held a competition for 
children to design a logo and want to incorporate activities for older children in the area.
Total project costs are £200k and they have raised £47,157.59 towards the project.  They have 
applied for at least a further £101,000 and are holding fundraising activities themselves. 
Letter of support from the local School who regularly uses the park during the school day as 
party of their curriculum and extended opportunities (running club). Many of their school trips 
follow a route through the park but in addition to this the park can be the destination for a 
particular topic or project.
Recommend a contribution and this application will go to two of our funds to help towards the 
amount requested.
Priority - children & young people
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries

49



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Fund 19/20 

(Groups)
Application no 21723

Project cost £6,000.00 Amount requested £6,000.00 over 3 years
Amount 
recommended

Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Sandylands Residents Association
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 1 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

50

Aims of the 
group

The application organisation is a Residents Association concerned primarily with the 
wellbeing of residents in South lakes Housing Association properties. However, in
response to Storm Desmond, the Association voted in 2016 to create a separate Flood
Action Group to cover a wider area, to work to prevent and ameliorate future flooding.
The North East Kendal Flood Action group works on behalf of the urban communities in the 
north east quadrant Kendal, but also together with other Flood Groups, the Cumbria 
Community Flood Partnership, and the National Flood Forum.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

6 No. of approved 
grants

4 Total Amount 
Awarded

£10584.00

Project Details
Project title Storage space for Uniform Share scheme
Project detail The grant would pay for storage space to allow for the continuation of our uniform share which 

is fully supported by Morrisons Supermarket who act as a drop off point. Our aim after a 
successful launch on 1st August seen here 
https://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/17818782.parents-given-helping-hand-
uniform-provision-event-
kendal/?fbclid=IwAR1FpQGLxkZlOtLHMps0mhAqMdbjENiMkFK7ty-
FgJcglt3vQklyAn9tymU. Is to create a means to replace or swap uniforms during the end of 
term Holidays at Christmas, Easter and Summer holidays. Plus have a collection of uniforms 
for families moving into the area or new schools

Need The link below shows the need for such services as we have a number of schools all of which 
has a set uniform requirement.

https://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/17818782.parents-given-helping-hand-
uniform-provision-event-
kendal/?fbclid=IwAR1FpQGLxkZlOtLHMps0mhAqMdbjENiMkFK7ty-
FgJcglt3vQklyAn9tymU

As is mention in the report we also offer a free repairs cafe which offers free support in 
repairing items from clothing to electricals.

Disadvantage Like many towns and cities, Kendal has pockets of disadvantaged families and the cost of 
buying new uniforms can be hard even with the County Council Uniforms grants support. We 
aim to reduce this pressure and aim to reuse otherwise useable uniforms which will aid our 
community and towns recycling record.

Benefits The grant would pay for storage space to allow for the continuation of our uniform share which 
is fully supported by Morrisons Supermarket who act as a drop off point. Our aim after a 
successful launch on 1st August seen here:

https://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/17818782.parents-given-helping-hand-
uniform-provision-event-
kendal/?fbclid=IwAR1FpQGLxkZlOtLHMps0mhAqMdbjENiMkFK7ty-
FgJcglt3vQklyAn9tymU. 51



This would create a means to replace or swap uniforms during the end of term holidays at 
Christmas, Easter and the Summer holidays. Plus have a collection of uniforms for families 
moving into the area or new schools throughout the year with easy access and ease what can be 
a large expense.

No of beneficiaries 28000 No of volunteers 15

Expenditure
Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £6,000.00
£2000 per year to help cover storage unit cost over a 
three year period otherwise £2000 per year.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00 0

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received No

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Community Interest Company offering support and access to free and low cost events and 
activities in the Sandylands area of Kendal. They also run a free food share and free repairs 
cafe throughout the year.
They started this project last year and it has been successful, the clothes up to now have been 
stored in a volunteer’s home as with many of these kind of projects. They would now like to 
rent a storage unit in Kendal to store the clothes.  They have tried to find other space but have 
been unsuccessful. 

Replacing school uniforms can be expensive, the Department of Education estimates it costs 
around £230 a year. Additional to this is PE kit which can cost from £70 to £140. The 
Children's Society in 2018 put the total cost of uniform at £256 per primary school child and 
£338 per secondary school pupil.

This is a worthwhile project and has been taken up by quite a few schools, charity shops, 
individuals and groups.
In Penrith the Salvation Army collect and then give items out for free and Sedbergh Zero 
Waste volunteers collect wash and distribute school uniform items that are in good condition. 
Items available are listed on their web site and stored by volunteers or within community 
spaces. 

This application is for the cost of renting a local storage unit to store the items of clothing.  
They are requesting £2,000 per year and will continue to apply for grants to pay for the unit 
annually.
 A good project but being done by others much cheaper. Could the panel suggest any space that 
this group could use?

52



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust Application no 21742b
Project cost £4,387.80 Amount requested £4,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Kirkby Stephen Junior Football Club
Post Town KIRKBY STEPHEN District Eden

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

75

Aims of the 
group

Volunteer run Community group, providing a safe and fun environment for local youngsters 
aged 6-16 to play football

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

3 No. of approved 
grants

1 Total Amount 
Awarded

£2500.00

Project Details
Project title Parrot Park re-fencing
Project detail We want to replace the perimeter fence of our facility at Parrot Park, Hartley Road, Kirkby 

Stephen. The existing fence is in a very poor state of repair, and is in parts no longer fit for 
purpose. The new fence will help prevent rabbits gaining access to the field and digging up our 
pitches.

Need Overheard comments from both players and spectators about the holes in the pitch
Disadvantage While there is no immediate disadvantage to our members at present the increased risk of 

injury due to rabbit holes is becoming a concern to our club committee. We are constantly 
having to buy in soil to fill in holes before allowing games to take place.

Benefits Not only will the replacement of the fence improve the overall look of our facility, more 
importantly it should help prevent the risk of injury to our members by preventing rabbits 
digging holes on the pitches which are dangerous for our players should they run into one. The 
new fence will also help us save money on burst balls which get into the hedgerows very easily 
at the moment due to the disrepair of the aging fence there at present.

Measure The only real measure will come over time when the reduced number of rabbit holes is no 
longer a concern.

After funding 
ends

This will be a one-off project.

No of beneficiaries 300 No of volunteers 9

Expenditure
Capital costs: £4,000.00
repair fencing

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

No

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Organisation set up in 2003 who play at Parrots Park in Kirkby Stephen. The land was gifted to 
the club by a local Trust. 
Teaching boys and girls aged 6 – 16 the skills of playing football and improving their 
discipline.  They also provide women's football on a Monday and the adult team are in the local 
league.

53



They run by the FA Chartered Standard Club rules.
Their latest accounts 31.5.19 show an income of £7,728 and expenditure of £3,446.  They had 
a carryover of £7,728 and have a balance of £4,000 in their account as of August 2019. 
Their main income is subscriptions but they also hold fundraising events to raise money.  Their 
main expenditure is Insurance costs.   They also hire the Astro Turf at Kirkby Stephen 
Grammar School. 

The fence will surround the pitches on 3 sides as there is already a gate and club house on the 
4th side.
Quotes have been provided

Recommend support and this application went to another funds and was awarded £3,000 to 
help towards the project costs.

54



Document is Restricted

55

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT
	Holehird Income & Expenditure for Meeting 19.12.19
	Holehird Balance Sheet for Meeting 19.12.19
	Holehird Notes for Meeting 19.12.19
	Holehird Schedule of Grants Paid for Meeting 19.12.19

	6 GRANT APPLICATIONS
	21921a Eden Sight Support
	21811 Common Space Common Humanity
	21911a Kirkby Lonsdale RUFC
	21788 St George Church Kendal
	21764b South Lakeland Hydro
	21773 Hallgarth Senior Citizens
	21756 Witherslack Youth Club
	21912a Windermere Park for All
	21723 Sandylands Residents Association
	21742b Kirkby Stephen Junior Football Club

	8 PROPERTY MATTERS

